BICYCLE & PEDESTRIAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE of the COLLIER METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION

Collier County Government Center, Administration Building (F)
IT Training Room, Fifth Floor
3299 Tamiami Trail East, Naples, FL, 34112

January 17, 2023 - 9:00 A.M. Meeting Minutes

1. Call to Order

Ms. Huff, having agreed to act as Chair in Mr. Matonti and Mr. Bonness' absence, called the meeting to order at 9:09 a.m.

2. Roll Call

Ms. Siegler called roll and confirmed a quorum was present.

Members Present

Anthony Matonti, Chair (arrived late)
Alan Musico (arrived late)
Andrea Halman
Carey Komorny
Dayna Fendrick
George Dondanville
Joe Bonness, Vice-Chair (arrived late)
Kim Jacob
Mark Komanecky
Michelle Sproviero
Patty Huff, Successor Vice-Chair

Members Absent

Robert Phelan

None

MPO Staff Present

Anne McLaughlin, Executive Director Sean Kingston, Principal Planner Dusty Siegler, Administrative Assistant

Others Present

Lorraine Lantz, Collier County Transportation Planning Megan Greer, Blue Zones Michelle Avola-Brown, Naples Pathways Coalition Tanya Merkle, FDOT

3. Approval of the Agenda

Mr. Dondanville moved to approve the agenda. Seconded by Ms. Fendrick. Carried unanimously.

4. Approval of the November 15, 2022 Meeting Minutes

Ms. Sproviero moved to approve the November 15, 2022 minutes. Seconded by Mr. Komanecky. Carried unanimously.

5. Open to the Public for Comment on Items Not on the Agenda

None.

6. Agency Updates

A. FDOT:

Ms. McLaughlin indicated that FDOT has circulated its Draft Tentative Work Program; the final snapshot of the Program is expected in April.

Ms. Merkle indicated that she has received SUN Trail applications for review and recommendations, which are due to FDOT central office in the middle of April.

Ms. Fendrick indicated that FDOT's Draft Tentative Work Program shows the Everglades City Phase 3 project as sidewalk projects, but the projects include re-striping the roadway to remove the outer lane to use as a bike lane. Ms. Fendrick would like to make sure the description in the Work Program is correct. **Ms. Merkle** indicated she would review it and double-check. **Ms. Fendrick** inquired as to the status of the Copeland Avenue sidewalk project; her understanding was that it was supposed to start in September and was postponed. **Ms. Merkle** indicated she would check and report back.

Ms. Sproviero indicated that a survey had been sent out regarding the Marco Island Loop Trail, but it does not seem widely known. Ms. Sproviero stated that she only found out about it from Naples Velo and asked what could be done to make the survey known to the public so that more input outside of the bicycling community could be gathered. Ms. Merkle responded that FDOT has been going to farmers markets, public meetings and public areas and providing the information. Hurricane Ian impacted timing, and the deadline was extended. There have been efforts to reach out, including through the media. FDOT has received many responses. Ms. Merkle indicated she would follow up to confirm what avenues of public outreach are being utilized. Ms. Sproviero requested that the final results be provided, and Ms. Merkle responded that a final report and resulting recommendations will be provided. Ms. Huff asked for confirmation of the deadline, and Ms. Merkle responded that it was January 16. Ms. Huff requested that a report or presentation be provided at the next BPAC meeting. Ms. Merkle responded that FDOT needs time to review the information gathered, and she will work with Ms. McLaughlin to provide

information and potentially a presentation at a future BPAC meeting. **Mr. Phelan** asked if the route for the Loop Trail had been finalized. **Ms. Merkle** responded that the route is still part of the study. **Ms. Halman** asked if the information is being shared with the County or just Marco Island; she was not aware that there were online meetings. **Ms. Huff** clarified that the meetings were for the steering committee; Ms. Huff, Mr. Musico and Mr. Phelan are members. The last meeting was during late 2022. Much of the discussion at the last steering committee meeting was about shared use of bridges. **Ms. Halman** expressed a desire to attend the meetings. **Ms. Merkle** indicated she would follow up to get information and provide it to Ms. McLaughlin.

B. MPO:

Ms. McLaughlin stated that the MPO is happy to have Ms. Siegler and Mr. Kingston on staff, and that a vacant principal planner position was posted, but has not been filled. Over the next few months, Ms. McLaughlin intends to seek consulting services to assist with the MPO's workload.

[Mr. Bonness arrived at the meeting.]

7. <u>Committee Action</u>

A. Elect Chair and Vice-Chair

Mr. Dondanville moved to elect Mr. Matonti as Chair. *Ms. Sproviero* seconded. Carried unanimously.

Ms. Halman moved to elect Ms. Huff as Vice-Chair. Mr. Bonness seconded. Carried unanimously.

B. Review and Endorse Scope of Services for Bicycle & Pedestrian Master Plan Update

Ms. McLaughlin explained that MPO Staff is preparing to have a work order issued under its general planning contract for professional services to update the 2019 Bicycle & Pedestrian Master Plan (BPMP). At its November meeting, BPAC received a presentation on the BPMP update and discussed potential scope of work elements in a workshop format. After receiving Mr. Matonti's BPAC Chair Report at its December 9, 2022, meeting, the MPO Board made the following suggestions regarding the BPMP update: Commissioner McDaniel urged the MPO to rely more on input from BPAC and less on the opinions of consultants and to include outreach to teach pedestrian and bicycle safety at elementary schools; Commissioner Kowal requested the Deputy County Attorney to develop an ordinance regarding cyclists riding against traffic on sidewalks being inherently unsafe, and the MPO Board approved a motion to have BPAC review the draft ordinance; and Commissioner Hall mentioned that he is an avid cyclist, and believes education is central, including outreach to seasonal drivers and riders on electric bicycles. The draft ordinance is in the very beginning stages. As soon as a draft ordinance is ready, it will be presented to BPAC.

The draft Scope of Services incorporates BPAC's suggestions from its November meeting and some broad language to capture the MPO Board's concerns. The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and the Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) will also be requested to endorse the Scope this month, and then the Scope is submitted to FDOT and FHWA for approval and vendor selection (which is done through the County). Possibly in February, the MPO would request the MPO Board to approve a work order, followed by a notice to proceed in March. The estimated time frame the BPMP update would be Spring of 2024 for finalization, providing for a good transition to the Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP); the BPMP update is a critical component of the LRTP. The primary purpose of the Scope is to develop an Update that would be incorporated into the next LRTP. The BPMP Update is the deciding plan on how the MPO invests Surface Transportation Block Grant – Urban (SU) funds for bicycle/pedestrian projects and the investment of Transportation Alternatives (TA) funds, which has been expanded to include carbon reduction formula funds. The amount of potential funds is expanding (although there will be competition for the funds, which also address transit). Other programs are mentioned, such as the Reconnecting Communities Pilot Program (if extended) and RAISE (Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity). Public safety was added; public involvement is key. There is existing information to be incorporated into the Update, which would save time for the consultant because so much work has already been done, particularly at the regional level (such as the Naples Pathways Coalition (NPC) Paradise Coast Trail vision being the structural component of a regional connected network, which includes part of the SUN Trail). There are new data and policies to be evaluated and the prospect for new evaluation criteria and call for project details. The Scope contains SU and TA fund allocations and sets forth the rotation for project initiatives. SU funds are just over \$5 million per year and TA funds are approximately \$700,000 per year. The combined increase under the latest bill would add approximately \$800,000 and the possibility to target carbon reduction program funds of approximately \$660,000. Evaluation criteria components include broad language to incorporate members' previous comments. The bike/ped facility GIS database and map and other online applications that may make the information more available to the public would need to be updated.

Ms. McLaughlin requested member comments on the draft Scope.

Ms. Huff commented that the local/regional plan section's reference to U.S. Bike Route 15 (in item 9) is incorrect; State Bike Route 15 is listed, and it should be U.S. Bike Route 15. The status of U.S. B.R. 15 is that there are four counties that have not yet approved of it; NPC hopes to get approval by Spring. Separately, at a recent meeting of the Office of Greenways and Trails, it was mentioned that there is interest in extending the whole network of pathway systems throughout the State so there is more connectivity between urban areas and State and National parks. Ms. Huff suggested that it be included if such an initiative is pursued.

Mr. Dondanville requested clarification on whether BPAC will get to review and comment on the draft ordinance before it is passed. **Ms. McLaughlin** responded that any time an ordinance is proposed, great deference is given to legal counsel on what is being proposed. It was sincerely intended by the MPO Board that BPAC have input on the ordinance.

Ms. Halman requested clarification of what the Reconnecting Communities Pilot Program is. **Ms. McLaughlin** responded that the program contemplates trying to repair past damage done

by major transportation infrastructure in terms of cutting a community in half. It was clear from the notice of funding availability that the program seeks very expensive, complicated projects that would eventually become a prototype. Ultimately, while Collier County had an interesting project (Golden Gate Parkway Complete Streets project), Ms. McLaughlin's understanding is that it would not have been lucrative to pursue the funding. Ms. Halman asked if cul-de-sacs in communities that close the communities off would qualify. Ms. Lantz explained that the grant was looking for a road that disconnected a single community; it had to be one community that was disconnected. The County was looking at whether Golden Gate Parkway in Golden Gate City would qualify. It did not fit the criteria requirements for the grant. Mr. Dondanville indicated that a Golden Gate Parkway overpass from the Greenway to Freedom Park would connect a split community. Ms. Lantz responded that one of the grant program requirements is that a potential project is in an environmental justice area.

[Mr. Matonti arrived at the meeting.]

Mr. Komanecky asked what kind of outreach the MPO and BPAC are doing; when he talks to people about BPAC, most of them do not know it exists. Mr. Komanecky wondered if there are proactive approaches that could be taken, particularly with respect to social media. Ms. McLaughlin responded that whenever the MPO begins a major planning effort, such as the LRTP or the BPMP, the vendor is requested, as part of the scope of work, to come up with a specific public involvement plan for the planning development. The MPO has a broad Public Participation Plan that controls what it does for the committees, the MPO Board, and the MPO's internal work. When a significant plan is updated, much thought needs to be given to who the stakeholders are and who might be missing from the conversation. Consultants do bring more staffing and technical assistance to the project and public outreach efforts. The last time the BPMP was updated, the public outreach was robust and included online information and opportunities, maps showing existing facilities, the ability to suggest improvements and provide an illustrated representation, and online and social media surveys. The MPO can coordinate to use the County's Facebook page to post surveys. There is also traditional outreach of reaching people at local farmers markets and community events. For traditionally underserved populations, translators are used, and venues are selected where it is anticipated that minorities will be present. The MPO has received expensive proposals for things like automated or virtual town halls, which can cost approximately \$40,000 (about half of the budget for the BPMP update). Ms. Huff suggested the potential of collaborating with NPC and Blue Zones, and the Florida Bicycle Association to help with outreach by including it in their newsletters and updates.

[Mr. Musico arrived at the meeting.]

Ms. Fendrick indicated that she is pleased the criteria for project selection and prioritization is being expanded. Ms. Fendrick asked if the County has counters in place for bicycle/pedestrian traffic and requested data from the counters. **Ms. Lantz** responded that there are counters but was unsure of the exact locations of them. There were counters on Golden Gate Parkway for the Complete Streets project. Ms. Lantz indicated she could follow up with Michael Tisch to get the information.

Ms. Fendrick suggested adding an element to the policy section of the Scope to deal with

"mega" roads and "mega" intersections. Ms. Fendrick indicated that they become barriers to cyclists/pedestrians. Ms. Fendrick would like a policy to try to keep the roads smaller, more interconnected, and built with more thoughtful bike/ped facilities (instead of as an after-thought). Ms. Huff commented that FDOT has a policy to the effect. Ms. Merkle clarified that it depends on the project; right-of-way constraints are an issue. Repurposing lanes would be individual to the communities and their needs and desires. Ms. Lantz added that it is difficult to retrofit into a built environment; Vanderbilt Beach Road Extension is the first new road that has been constructed in years. BPAC has been exploring issues with gaps in connectivity, which is also a focal point for the County. Mr. Bonness commented that the issue stems from the Land Development Code. As gated communities were constructed, they desired exclusivity and did not want connectivity.

Ms. Halman asked if the BPMP update would be added to the current Master Plan booklet, and **Ms. McLaughlin** speculated that it would replace it, but the answer will be better known once a consultant is on-board. Ms. McLaughlin anticipates the Update to be more focused, as so much has been done in the interim, especially regarding regional connections.

Mr. Musico stated that, in looking at the scoring criteria, one issue mentioned previously was project cost. Mr. Musico would support some mechanism for considering the cost of a proposed project; there should be a disincentive for projects that would consume the entire budget of allocated funds. The cost of a proposed project should be considered when looking at the scoring of a project because there would be a preclusion, to some extent, of the other proposed projects. **Ms. Halman** commented that sometimes, the cost should not matter if a project is needed. **Mr. Musico** responded that cost should be a consideration, but not necessarily an outcome determinative factor.

Mr. Matonti asked for clarification of which budget, LRTP or BPMP, Ms. McLaughlin was referring to when she mentioned that a \$40,000 virtual town hall would consume half of the budget. Ms. McLaughlin responded that she was referring to the BPMP budget, which is approximately \$56,000. The MPO can look to secure additional funding now that it has more latitude with consulting services. Mr. Matonti, circling back to online public outreach, pointed out that social media is a free method of outreach. Mr. Komanecky added that assistance from online platforms for organizations such as NPC would also be beneficial. Other agencies in Florida have used ad campaigns on Facebook to promote and it seems to be successful but would cost money and require expertise. A more proactive outreach on social media is something to consider. Mr. Bonness mentioned that there is the ability to reach out through major media, such as radio (Renda Broadcasting) or television, to get short advertisements. They are looking for opportunities to advertise public involvement. Mr. Musico added that many local newspapers are looking for topics for articles; reporters could be contacted and given information about what BPAC is doing and have the website included in the news article, which would be free.

Mr. Matonti asked what public involvement would likely cost. **Ms. McLaughlin** responded that the public involvement section in the draft Scope, at this stage, is generic. It currently includes interactive web-based component, traditional media, and other public outreach. **Mr. Matonti** suggested that coordination with local media and local agencies and non-profits could be added, with the understanding that they need to meet with BPAC. At the last MPO Board meeting, the Board indicated it is looking to BPAC to provide guidance on the Update.

- **Ms.** McLaughlin reiterated Mr. Matonti's comments to be incorporated into the draft Scope: under the public involvement section, add develop public outreach campaign for review by BPAC initially (which is ultimately approved by the MPO Board). This would likely include local print, radio and television media, and local agency/non-profit organization collaborations. Ms. McLaughlin will come up with additional language to add, and noted that consultants often desire to push the envelope when it comes to public involvement.
- Ms. McLaughlin delineated the following additional changes to the draft Scope based on the other member comments: correction of State Bike Route 15 to U.S. Bike Route 15 (under local and regional plans); language to address Ms. Fendrick's concern about general road network connectivity (under MPO planning policies); and inclusion of "costs" in the evaluation criteria.
- Mr. Musico indicated that one of the best ways to reach the public is attending public events, such as farmers markets. Mr. Musico has seen tremendous success in interacting with the public in such a way. Mr. Musico thinks it should be included as it provides an opportunity to have face-to-face interaction with people. Ms. McLaughlin agreed and indicated that in the past, the MPO has had staff or volunteers attend such events to save money. Ms. Halman pointed out that such outreach does not reach the people who need their bicycles for regular transportation and to commute for work. That population tends not to go to farmers markets as often. In Immokalee, many people work from early in the morning (5 a.m.) until mid-evening (6 or 7 p.m.). One would need to reach out to them in the early morning or evening before their bus rides, or when it is raining, and outdoor work is not feasible. Mr. Musico indicated that public outreach, to be effective, should be at a venue where people typically go. Ms. Halman added that information could also be provided to certain community members that could pass it on to groups of residents. There are many residents who utilize bicycles; bike racks are usually filled. Ms. McLaughlin stated that she would add language to the Scope regarding outreach to the local community.
- Mr. Matonti asked what the next steps would be. Ms. McLaughlin responded that the Scope (with BPAC's revisions and additions) will be presented to TAC and CAC on January 23 and then potentially to the MPO Board in February if FHWA and FDOT have reviewed it in time. Mr. Matonti asked if BPAC would get to review the Scope again, and Ms. McLaughlin responded that it would not be reviewed again in terms of approval. Mr. Matonti urged that if anyone had any further comments, changes, revisions, or additions to the Scope, to make it known.
- **Ms. McLaughlin** requested BPAC's endorsement of the Scope, as revised per the members' comments, and indicated that she could slow the process down if anyone had any concerns or felt they needed more time to review the Scope, but she is trying to keep the process moving in a timely fashion.
- **Ms. Halman** asked if education was included, and **Ms. McLaughlin** responded that safety education was included.
- Mr. Dondanville moved to endorse the Scope of Services for the Bicycle & Pedestrian Master Plan Update with the discussed revisions and additions. Mr. Musico seconded. Carried unanimously.

C. Review and Comment on Collier County's 2023 Road Resurfacing Plan

Ms. McLaughlin explained that the MPO received a distribution of the Plan on December 7, 2022, with the request to review and comment. The last time BPAC reviewed a resurfacing plan was January of 2022. The current Plan is a single-year plan (and not a five-year plan). Ms. McLaughlin provided preliminary comments and briefly met with the road maintenance project manager and Michael Tisch.

Ms. Halman asked how the resurfacing projects were selected, and Ms. McLaughlin responded that she was not sure, but would follow up to find out. Ms. Halman indicated that there are not many resurfacing projects occurring in Immokalee. Ms. Halman would like to know how resurfacing needs are determined, as many roads in Immokalee are in poor shape. Ms. McLaughlin responded that she did hear some discussion at the meeting regarding the analysis the County does on pavement condition and the technology used, and she could request a report on the process. Ms. McLaughlin further indicated she would request comments on the resurfacing projects and Ms. Halman's concern that there are not enough resurfacing projects slated for Immokalee.

Ms. McLaughlin indicated she spoke with the project manager about the project on Green Boulevard, as it coincides with a bike lane/sidewalk project that the MPO had funded. Both projects appear to be happening in the same year, so Ms. McLaughlin wanted to make sure they were being coordinated. One or the other of the projects may be slightly delayed so that the projects are streamlined.

Ms. Huff indicated that the annotated Plan provides that Mr. Tisch would follow up regarding the extent of drainage issues on Collier Avenue in Everglades City and asked whether that follow up had occurred. Ms. McLaughlin responded that she has not yet heard and wondered if Everglades City had received any follow up. Ms. Huff was not aware of anything. Ms. McLaughlin stated that when it was discussed, her sense was that it was a high priority for paving and accommodating lane guides. There was concern that the road may need a lot of work to clean up some drainage issues to be able to accommodate cyclists. Ms. McLaughlin's understanding was that there would be coordination to determine the scope for drainage and how it could be modified to accommodate bicycles, and then a report back regarding whether there might be any additional cost that the MPO could potentially assist with.

Ms. Fendrick asked what the red and black lines on the Plan depict. **Ms. McLaughlin** was not sure but indicated there were markups on the Plan from a capital project group that had reviewed it prior to it being distributed to the MPO. **Mr. Bonness** indicated that the red lines might represent overlays (another coat of asphalt) and the black lines might represent milling overlays (where the surface is removed and redone). [Various members expressed difficulty in understanding the nature of the projects depicted on the Plan.]

Ms. Jacob inquired about the process to get Sharrow markings for bicyclists requested and indicated that Vanderbilt Drive does not have a bike path and there are aggressive drivers and many cyclists. **Ms. McLaughlin** stated that the issue has been brought up before at BPAC

meetings, and her recollection is that there are issues regarding right-of-way that would limit the facilities that could be put in. Ultimately, it was decided to install sidewalks on both sides of the road rather than bike lanes. **Ms. Jacob** expressed that some sort of signage/markings is needed to make drivers more aware of the cyclists. **Ms. McLaughlin** indicated that she is unsure whether the County uses Sharrow markings for County roads. **Mr. Bonness** pointed out that the City of Naples has many Sharrows. Mr. Bonness had worked alongside the Community Traffic Safety Team and that organization does work to get Sharrow markings completed. **Ms. Merkle** added that the speed limit on the roadway is relevant to whether Sharrow markings are allowed; if the speed limit is greater than 35 mph, FDOT does not recommend Sharrow markings. There are other parameters for Sharrow markings, such as the type of traffic.

Ms. Fendrick stated that her recollection was that the purpose of getting the five-year resurfacing plan was so BPAC could review it and make requests regarding re-striping and bike lanes in connection with the resurfacing and have enough time to be able to do so. Ms. McLaughlin indicated that she was uncertain whether there is a five-year plan at this time, but would follow up to find out.

[Various members expressed confusion regarding the meaning of the markups on the plan map and the nature of the work to be performed.] **Mr. Matonti** indicated that the black lines on the map represent resurfacing projects, and the red lines represent major construction projects.

Ms. Sproviero commented that Collier Boulevard, near Paradise Coast Sports Complex, is dangerous for pedestrians/cyclists and there are no bike lanes. **Ms. Lantz** responded that the upcoming construction project will expand the road from four to six lanes and include sidewalks and a multi-use path.

Ms. McLaughlin indicated that she would touch base with Mr. Tisch regarding the comments and questions on the plan for the next BPAC meeting. Ms. Lantz indicated that Mr. Tisch went to the former meeting location for the BPAC meeting; he will try to attend the next BPAC meeting. With respect to the Vanderbilt Drive project, there is currently a sidewalk on the west side and a sidewalk will be added to the east side. There are right of way issues. Ms. McLaughlin indicated that she would follow up regarding the County's position on Sharrows, particularly with respect to Vanderbilt Drive.

Ms. Halman made a motion for the MPO to follow up regarding the questions and concerns raised at the meeting related to the 2023 Road Resurfacing Plan for the next BPAC meeting. Ms. Huff seconded. Carried unanimously.

D. Clear and Block Date for Tentative Joint Meeting with Lee County BPCC

Ms. McLaughlin explained that MPO staff has been working with Lee County to block a date for a tentative joint meeting with Lee County Bicycle Pedestrian Coordinating Committee (BPCC). Collier MPO would like at least four members of BPAC to attend the meeting; the meeting would not be an additional meeting for BPAC for the month of October. **Ms. Siegler** indicated that the meeting could be in Bonita Springs or Estero and the location will be worked out in the coming months.

Ms. Huff asked what quorum would be needed for a joint meeting and whether any decisions would be made at a joint meeting. Ms. McLaughlin indicated that it is unlikely decisions would be made and the focus would likely be on workshopping, sharing information, and regional presentations/updates. With respect to a quorum, MPO Staff has received somewhat conflicting information from the County Attorney's Office at differing times-the MPO was advised that it could not hold a meeting without a quorum present. More recently, in the context of regional meetings, the MPO was advised that if the meeting is only a workshop, it is okay to not have a quorum present. Ms. Huff indicated that her recollection was the last joint meeting was in a workshop and presentation format, and a quorum was not present. In the past, when there were joint regional plans, a quorum was necessary to vote. Ms. Halman asked how many members are needed for a quorum. Ms. McLaughlin stated that the quorum for BPAC is three. Ms. Siegler added that the request for four BPAC members' attendance at a joint meeting was to ensure enough members would be present for a quorum. The Interlocal Agreement with Lee County MPO does not specify the required number for a quorum for BPAC at a joint meeting, but does so specify for TAC and CAC.

Mr. Musico commented that he would like to know what the agenda for a joint meeting would be prior to scheduling a joint meeting. Ms. Huff indicated that she thinks it is important to connect with Lee County, even if just for information purposes, and all BPAC members should try to attend. **Ms. Halman** agreed that it is important to know what Lee County is going to discuss in advance of a joint meeting. Mr. Musico added that it is important for BPAC to be well-represented as no one knows what may come up at a regional meeting. Ms. Lantz indicated that October 24, 2023, is a BCC meeting day and, therefore, there would likely be Collier County staff that would be unable to attend a joint BPAC/BPCC meeting on that day. Ms. Siegler commented that the meeting rotation days for the MPOs are set and it is somewhat difficult to find meeting dates that work for all involved. Mr. Musico suggested that another meeting date be cleared due to the conflicting BCC meeting. Ms. McLaughlin indicated that MPO Staff could endeavor to get presentation materials from County staff ahead of time if staff would be unable to attend the meeting and Ms. McLaughlin could present. The most difficult thing for MPO Staff has been securing a meeting date and venue. Ms. Huff suggested that BPAC keep the October 24, 2023, date for a joint meeting. Ms. Siegler requested clarification on whether to move forward with the October 24 date or to try to get an alternate date and was directed to move forward with the October 24 date.

Ms. Huff moved to block October 24, 2023, for a potential joint meeting with Lee County BPCC. Mr. Komanecky seconded. Carried unanimously.

8. Reports & Presentations (May Require Committee Action)

None.

9. <u>Member Comments</u>

Ms. Huff stated that she is still conducting monthly bicycle rides in Everglades City. There was a music festival to raise funds for the Bank of Everglades Building restoration project on January 14. Florida Bicycle Association has a new Executive Director, Kelly Morphy. She is very active and works hard to promote the Association. The Association website has been updated and changed. Ms. Huff encouraged BPAC members to look into the Association to see if they would like to be members.

10. Distribution Items

None.

11. <u>Topics for Future Meetings</u>

Ms. McLaughlin indicated that the items discussed at the meeting provided sufficient topis for the next BPAC meeting.

12. Next Meeting Date

February 21, 2023 – 9:00 a.m., in-person only meeting, at Collier County Government Center, Bldg. F, IT Training Room, Fifth Floor, 3299 Tamiami Trail East, Naples, FL, 34112.

13. Adjournment

Mr. Matonti adjourned the meeting at 11:20 a.m.